July 4, 2019

Postmaster Juan Hernandez

Re:  Request for Information dated June 24, 2019

Dear Mr. Hernandez,

As you are well aware, it is the employer's obligation under Article 17 and 31 to provide information to the Union when the information is required in order for the Union to fulfill its duties to bargaining unit members. These duties, as you are also well aware, include  determining whether to file or to continue the processing of a grievance. The issue you raise is that of relevance, and as such, the NALC will address those concerns.

Arbitrator Mittenthal concludes in his opinion in National Arbitration case H4T-2A-C 36687, 

"It is for the APWU alone to " determine .  .  . if a grievance exists .  .  .  ", to " determine whether to file .  .  .  a grievance .  .  ." If the information it seeks has any "relevancy" to that determination , however slight, its request for this information should be granted"

The bar of relevancy is a low one for The NALC to cross. In the instant case, the employee covered under the agreement was not subjected to the same repercussions for identical alleged misconduct. It is one of the Just Cause criteria found on pages 16-1, 16-2 of the JCAM  that,

" . . . a rule must be applied fairly and without discrimination.  Consistent and equitable enforcement is a critical factor."

The disciplinary records of supervisors, charged with the same infraction as one for which our grievant is alleged to have committed are integral to supporting the just cause of any action taken against Jane Doe. NLRB cases citing violations of NLRA section 8(a)(5) and federal court decisions support this conclusion.

In NLRB v . United States Postal Service (888 F .2d 1568, 11th Cir . 1989), the U .S . Court of Appeals enforced a decision of the NLRB that required management to disclose its records of disciplinary action taken against supervisors who engaged in gambling activities. 
The National Arbitration award by Professor Snow, which you cite (H7N-5C-C 12397, July 29, 1991), does not, in fact, set a "three-pronged standard for relevancy" as you claim. The quote you have misappropriated merely reflects the Union's argument as brought forward in this particular case. Professor Snow sustained the Union's argument in this grievance and indeed referred to the above cited Mittenthal decision in declaring the relevancy requirement to be minimal. Professor Snow further explains the relevancy requirement,

"There is a presumption of relevancy if the requested information pertains directly to a subject about which there is a mandatory obligation to bargain . . . it is clear that the Court and the NLRB have applied a modern rule of discovery to the collective bargaining context . The requested information should be disclosed "unless it plainly appears irrelevant"."

Additionally, the Service argues that searching their own records for gas receipts proving the grievant has misused Postal debit cards would incur cost to the Union due to the time necessary to research the files. The NALC would like to point out that the Postal Service's investigation of misconduct must include a review of evidence against the grievant. It is not reasonable for the Service to now argue that the NALC must finance the Service's own investigation to fulfill their burden of proof in these discipline charges. If the Service would like to provide a statement in writing that the evidence proving our carrier guilty of misconduct does not exist, the NALC will accept the statement as fulfilling this aspect of our information request.  

The NALC would like to remind you that a "failure to provide information" grievance has already been filed in regards to this investigation (grievance number PRB1910), with the Postal Service finally agreeing to provide the requested information in a settlement with the Union. The National Labor Relations Board has ruled that USPS Supervisors or Managers who repeatedly fail to reasonably supply relevant information to the Union could be subject to discipline, up to and including removal (see 10-CA-134589, April 16, 2015). It may be prudent for you to consult with USPS Labor Relations prior to making a decision to further obstruct the Union from fulfilling its bargaining unit obligations to Jane Doe

Please let me know if I can be of any further assistance in this matter.

Sincerely,

Steward John Smith

